1981

Government Employees Insurance Company v. William Charles Dennis v. James C. Holder, Et Al. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a declaratory action filed by plaintiff insurance company seeking a determination as to whether William Charles Dennis is an additional insured under the terms of a policy issued to his father.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

A jury trial was held in this matter on May 27 and May 28, 1980, the Honorable Jay E. Banks presiding. The jury found that defendant William Charles Dennis was not a resident of his father's household. The lower court

entered a judgment in favor of plaintiff and against defendant, finding that plaintiff had no obligation to indemnify or defend William Charles Dennis in any action or judgment arising from an automobile accident on February 25, 1978.

On June 16, 1980, a hearing was held at which time Defendants-in-Intervention moved for a judgment n.o.v. or, in the alternative, for a new trial. On July 14, 1980, the court granted the motion for a judgment n.o.v., set aside the findings of the jury from the previous judgment, and held that plaintiff did owe an obligation to defend William Charles Dennis and to provide insurance coverage for any judgment obtained as a result of the accident on February 25, 1978.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant Government Employees Insurance Company seeks a reversal of the judgment notwithstanding the verdict and a reinstatement of the judgment based upon the jury's finding.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This action was commenced by plaintiff Government Employees Insurance Company to determine whether William Charles Dennis was insured under a policy issued to his father, Donald R. Dennis. Because this appeal is concerned solely with the issue as to whether there was a factual question for the jury and as to whether there was substantial evidence to support the jury's finding, it is unnecessary and repetitious at this time to restate the evidence which will be argued infra to support appellant's

contentions. Rather, it is more germane for this Court to understand the procedural events which occurred in this litigation and the effect such events now have upon this appeal.

On November 21, 1979, Plaintiff filed a complaint for declaratory relief against defendant William Charles Dennis. (R. 2-4). The complaint alleged that Plaintiff had issued an insurance policy to Donald R. Dennis which provided coverage for bodily injury liability to Donald R. Dennis and to other additional insureds who qualified under the terms of the policy. The complaint further alleged that on February 25, 1978, William Charles Dennis, son of the insured, was involved in an accident with an automobile driven by James Holder and that a lawsuit had been subsequently filed in Salt Lake County against William Charles Dennis. Plaintiff sought a declaration that the plaintiff did not owe any obligation of defense or payment to defendant William Charles Dennis with respect to any claim arising from the February 25 accident.

On November 28, 1979, an answer was filed on behalf of defendant William Charles Dennis by his attorney Joseph Fratto. (R. 19-20). On December 10, 1979, James C. Holder, his wife and children, moved to intervene in the action through their attorney, Stephen Morgan. (R. 52). At that time they tendered an answer on behalf of Defendants-in-Intervention claiming that defendant William Charles Dennis was covered under the terms of the plaintiff's policy. (R. 21-25). On December 28, 1979, the Holders' motion

to intervene was granted by the Honorable Homer F. Wilkinson. (R. 60-62).

On February 25, 1980, Defendants-in-Intervention filed a motion for summary judgment. (R. 63). On February 28, 1980, Plaintiff filed a motion for summary judgment. (R. 129). On March 4, 1980, both motions were heard by the Honorable Bryant H. Croft and both motions for summary judgment were denied. (R. 147).

On March 21, 1980, Defendants-in-Intervention filed their demand for a jury trial. (R. 170). On May 27, 1980, a jury trial was commenced with the Honorable Jay E. Banks presiding. The trial continued through May 28, 1980. (R. 196-197). Plaintiff called four witnesses and rested. Defendant and Defendants-in-Intervention called no witnesses and rested. Defendant and Defendants-in-Intervention moved for a directed verdict at the termination of the testimony. The court took the motions under advisement. (R. 197).

On May 28, 1980, the jury was read the court's instructions and was given a special verdict form which required it to answer the question of whether defendant William Charles Dennis was a "resident of his father's household" on February 25, 1978. (R. 198). The jury returned the form with the answer "No." (R. 198). On May 30, 1980, a judgment on the verdict was signed by Judge Jay E. Banks ordering that Plaintiff had no obligation under its policy with Donald R. Dennis to pay,

indemnify, or defend his son William Charles Dennis from any action or judgment arising from the February 25, 1978 accident. (R. 309-310).

On June 6, 1980, Defendant and Defendants-in-Intervention moved for a judgment notwithstanding the verdict or, in the alternative, for a new trial. (R. 311-320). The motions were argued extensively on June 16, 1980, and the Court, at that time, took the motions under advisement. (Tr. 523-572). On July 14, 1980, the lower court granted the motions for a judgment notwithstanding the verdict. (R. 378).

After Plaintiff objected to the form of the judgment notwithstanding the verdict originally signed by the court (R. 379-380), an amended judgment was executed by the lower court (R. 383-384). This form was also objected to and a third order was signed by the lower court entitled "Second Amended Judgment Notwithstanding the Verdict." (R. 385-386). It is from this order and judgment that the present appeal is taken. (R. 387).

ARGUMENT

THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN SETTING ASIDE THE JUDGMENT BASED UPON THE JURY'S FINDINGS AND IN ENTERING A JUDGMENT NOTWITHSTANDING THE VERDICT.

It is the contention of Plaintiff-Appellant that the question of whether a person is an additional insured under a policy insuring "relatives" who are "residents of the insured's household" is, in almost all cases, a question of fact. In the instant case a review of the

record shows that there was a clear dispute as to the inferences to be drawn from the facts produced by both sides of this dispute as to whether defendant William Charles Dennis was in fact "a resident of his father's household." Since there was substantial evidence to support the jury's finding that he was not such a resident it was prejudicial error for the lower court to disregard the jury's findings and to enter a judgment contrary to the jury's determination. Plaintiff's contentions will now be examined in detail.

A. The Determination of Whether a "Relative" is a Resident of an Insured's Household is a Factual Question.

Plaintiff-Appellant issued a general automobile liability policy to Donald R. Dennis for a term commencing November 20, 1977, and continuing through November 20, 1978. The policy specifically insured a 1972 Caprice and a 1972 Chevrolet camper. (Exhibit 2P). Donald R. Dennis in his application for the insurance listed himself and his wife, Francis H. Dennis, as the sole operators of these two vehicles. (Exhibit 2P).

It is undisputed that defendant William Charles Dennis is neither a listed insured under the policy nor a listed operator of the vehicles insured under the policy. Thus, the only way in which coverage can be afforded to Defendant is if he qualifies as an additional insured under the general terms of the policy.

On February 25, 1978, defendant William Charles Dennis was driving an automobile belonging to a Sandra

Freestone. This suit, therefore, evolved around an accident in which William Charles Dennis was driving a vehicle not owned or listed by his father. The pertinent portion of the policy is limited as follows:

Persons Insured: The following are insureds under Part I:

* * *

b. With respect to a nonowned automobile,

- (1) the named insured,
- (2) any relative, but only with respect to a private passenger automobile or trailer

The term "relative" is defined by the policy as follows:

"Relative" means a relative of the named insured who is a resident of the same household.

Thus, the sole issue in this lawsuit was whether the definition of "relative" applied to defendant. In other words, was defendant William Charles Dennis a resident of his father's household?

The two words in controversy during this lawsuit were "resident" and "household." Plaintiff contended that Defendant, while admittedly a relative of the insured, was not residing in Donald Dennis' household as was required by the policy and therefore was not insured. Defendant and Defendants-in-Intervention, on the other hand, contended that William Charles Dennis was indeed a resident of his father's household and was therefore covered.

It is elementary that terms contained in insurance contracts are to be taken and understood in their plain,

ordinary, and common sense usage. The test used to determine the meaning of such terms is simply what a reasonable person would expect such terms to normally mean.

It has been stated that the purpose of including coverage for unnamed insureds is to provide protection for those whom, because of a close relationship, a person obtaining a liability insurance policy would ordinarily want to protect. National Farmers Union Property and Casualty Company v. Maca, 132 N.W.2d 517 (Wis. 1965). Expressions such as "residents of household" are used to describe a "common type of close relationship varying greatly in detail, where people live together as a family in a closely knit group, usually because of close relationship by blood, marriage or adoption and deal with each other intimately, informally, and not at arms length." Id. at 601.

In determining whether a person is an additional insured under the terms of a policy, it is useful to examine a dictionary-type definition of the terms in question. For example, the term "resident" is defined by Webster's International Dictionary as "one who resides in a place" or "one who dwells in a place for more or less duration. Resident usually implies more or less permanence of abode, but is often distinguished from inhabitant as not implying great fixity or permanency of abode." Residency also implies "dwelling, or having an abode, for a continued length of time." Great American Insurance Company v.

Marshall, 356 F.Supp. 208 (D.C.G. 1967)

Likewise, the term "household" has been stated as follows:

There is not much disagreement in the definition of "household," whether they emanate from judges or lexicographers. The word is synonymous with "family" but broader, in that it includes servants or attendants, "all who are under one domestic head; persons who dwell together as a family." Engebretson v. Austdold, 271 N.W. 809, 810 (Minn. 1930).

While these general definitions of "residence" and "household" are helpful, they do not provide the type of criteria necessary to determine if a person becomes an insured under the particular facts of that case. For this reason, courts have developed a number of factors to examine the circumstances surrounding the claim, in order to determine if the policy is applicable.

An extensive annotation dealing with the exact question of what determines a "resident" or member of a "household" states the general rule as follows:

A review of the cases construing or applying the particular policy terms that are the subject of the present annotation reveals a wide variety of factual considerations upon which the courts have focused in their determination of whether a particular person was a "resident" or "member" of the same "household" or "family" as the named insured at a particular time.

Those factual considerations not only relate to the respective individual's physical presence, or absence from, the named insured's home during the period that included the date of a particular occurrence, but also relate to such matters as the relationship (if any) of the individual to the named insured, the circumstances of such person's presence in or absence from

the named insured's home, the individual's living arrangements during earlier time periods and the individual's intention at various times with regard to his place of residence. 93 ALR 3d 420, 424.

More specifically, the courts have examined the subjective or declared intent of the individual, Hardware Mutual Casualty Company v. Home Indemnity Company, 60 Cal. Rptr., 508 (Cal. App. 1966); the formality or informality of the relationship between the individual and the members of the household, Pamparin v. Milwaukee Mutual Insurance Company, 197 N.W.2d 783 (Wis. 1972); the existence of another place of lodging by the alleged resident, State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company v. Holloway, 423 F.2d 1281 (10th Cir. 1970); and the relative permanence or transient nature of the individual's residence in the household, Great American Insurance Company v. Marshall, 266 F.Supp. 208 (D.S.C. 1967).

Of all of these factors, the intention of the parties is one of the most important evidentiary questions to be considered. As noted by the Wisconsin Supreme Court, "While it is true that 'actions sometimes speak louder than words,' intention is a subjective state of mind to be determined upon all of the facts including the declaration of the person inquired about." Lecus v. American Mutual Insurance Company of Boston, 260 N.W.2d 241 (Wis. 1977).

Likewise, the intended duration of a stay is also an important factor to be examined since if a person comes under the family roof for a definite short period or for an indefinite period under such circumstances

that an early termination is highly probable, then it is unlikely the person has become a member of the household as intended by the insurance coverage. Nation-wide Mutual Insurance Company v. Granillo, 573 P.2d 80 (Ariz. App. 1977).

In summary, therefore, whether a person is a resident of the insured's household depends upon the particular facts in each case. Bartholet v. Berkness, 189 N.W.2d 410 (Minn. 1971). These facts involve a variety of considerations in which the factfinder can utilize in determining if the criteria necessary to qualify for insurance coverage has been established.

This Court, in American States Insurance Company v. Walker, 486 P.2d 1042 (Utah 1971), reviewed a number of such factors in deciding whether a college student could be considered a resident of her father's household. The lower court looked into the girl's intent and her statement that she considered herself to be a resident of her father's household while she was in school in Idaho. The court looked at the opening of a joint banking account with her father and a telephone listing in her own name. The court examined her income and the fact that her father gave her additional money to assist her in living expenses and in returning home. The court examined the type of furniture and possessions she had with her in her apartment as opposed to her father's house. The court examined her voting residency in Idaho, her driver's license in Idaho, and her

income tax statements.

This Court stated that the question of whether or not a child ceases to be a member of the family household after going away to school "must be determined from all of the facts and circumstances as revealed by the evidence." Id. at 1044. This Court further stated, "It is our duty to affirm him (the lower court) if there is any substantial evidence to sustain that ruling." Id. at 1044.

Thus, the rule is clear that except in extraordinary cases in which a person clearly does not qualify as an insured by any definition of the term, Bartholet v. Berkness, 189 N.W.2d 410 (Minn. 1971), it is for the trier of fact to determine, based upon the circumstances and evidence adduced at trial, whether the person can be said to be a resident of the insured's household.

As stated by the leading authority Couch, "whether a relative driving an insured vehicle is a resident of the insured's household is a question of fact." Couch, Couch on Insurance 2d, §45:276, p. 176 (Supp.) In addition there are a legion of cases holding that the ultimate determination of whether a person is a resident of an insured's household is solely a question of fact for the trier of fact. For example, the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals in Hardesty v. State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company, 382 F.2d 564 (10th Cir. 1967), has amply demonstrated this principle. In that case the question was whether a son was a resident of his father's household at the time of an accident. In a previous

appeal, 361 F.2d 176, the Tenth Circuit reversed a declaration by the trial court that, as a matter of law, the son was not covered under the policy.

Upon the remand the trial court did not submit the case to a jury but held, again, as a matter of law that under the evidence reasonable men could only conclude that the son was not a resident of the father's household. The Tenth Circuit Court in the second opinion reversed the lower court again and noted that the words "resident of the same household" do not constitute a term of art which would dictate a particularized legal inference to be drawn from family relationships. The court stated, "The function of the court remains, then, to submit to the jury consideration of evidentiary facts from which different permissible inferences may be drawn." Id. at 565.

The Tenth Circuit Court then stated the following:

We reiterate that there is strong and cogent evidence in the record which would lead the factfinder to the conclusion that Ennis Jr. was residing in the household of his aunt who had reared and educated him since he was eight years old with a minimum of assistance of any kind from his father. Weighty as this evidence may be, and thus proper for the trial court's consideration in the discretionary function of ruling upon motions for new trial, we cannot say such evidence dictates a "one way" verdict as a matter of law. Id. at 565.

There is no doubt that there are numerous cases throughout the country in which it has been held that an emancipated child who has left the family residence but who has returned for one reason or another can be deemed as a resident of the family household. See cases

listed 93 ALR 3rd, 420, 449-451. Likewise, there are numerous other cases in which such a child has been held not to be a resident of the family household. Id. at 451-453. However, it is patently clear that the question as to coverage is one of fact and not law. Each case, regardless of the outcome, turns upon the circumstances existing at the time the liability was claimed. It is the factfinder who must decide whether coverage exists. As long as there are conflicting versions of the evidence or conflicting inferences to be drawn from the evidence, the matter must be submitted to the factfinder. The instant case clearly involved a dispute which required submission and determination by the jury.

B. There Existed Substantial Disputes
as to the Inferences to be Drawn from the
Evidence Which Required Submission to the
Jury of Whether William Charles Dennis
Was a Resident of His Father's Household.

It is interesting to note that in this case Defendant in-Intervention first moved for summary judgment based upon the argument that the evidence was uncontroverted that William Charles Dennis was a resident of his father's household. (R. 63-73). Similarly, Plaintiff also moved for summary judgment based upon the assumption that the evidence was clear and undisputed that William Charles Dennis was not a resident of his father's household. (R. 133-145).

After extensive argument before the Honorable Bryant Croft, both motions were denied. (R. 147). Judge

Croft held that there was clearly a question of fact based upon the conflicting inferences to be drawn from the basically undisputed facts in the record.

After the denial of the two motions, it was the Defendants-in-Intervention who made a demand for a jury trial. (R. 170). After submission of the case to the jury Defendants-in-Intervention moved for a directed verdict in their favor. The court took the motion under advisement but submitted the issue of residency to the jury on a special verdict form. (R. 198).

Thus, it was not until some 45 days after the verdict had been rendered that the lower court decided that there was no proper question for the jury to determine and that the issue should have been ruled upon as a matter of law. Up until this time, both Judge Croft, in reviewing the motion for summary judgment and Judge Banks, in submitting the issue to the jury, had concluded there was sufficient evidence to merit jury consideration.

Appellant submits that this initial determination by the two judges was correct based upon the substantial difference in the contentions of the parties relating to the facts and the inferences to be drawn from them. A review of the record shows substantial questions of fact which should have been submitted to the jury for its determination.

The instant case is analogous to the case of Aetna Casualty and Surety Company of Hartford, Connecticut v.

Means, 382 F.2d 26 (10th Cir. 1967). In that case a declaratory action was brought to determine whether a son was a member of the insured father's household. The case was tried to a jury and the identical question, as in the instant case, was submitted to it. The jury determined that the son was a member of the household. The insurance company moved for a judgment notwithstanding the verdict or for a new trial. Both motions were denied. The Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals, in affirming the lower court judgment and denial of the motion, stated the following pertinent observation:

There is no substantial conflict in the testimony as to the pertinent evidentiary facts. There is a big difference between the contentions of the parties as to the inference of ultimate facts to be drawn from the established evidentiary facts. Id. at 27. (Emphasis added).

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