1981

Government Employees Insurance Company v. William Charles Dennis v. James C. Holder, Et Al. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

THE LOWER COURT CORRECTLY DETERMINED THAT, AS A MATTER OF LAW, THE ONLY REASONABLE INFERENCE TO BE DRAWN FROM THE UNCONTROVERTED FACTS WAS THAT WILLIAM CHARLES DENNIS WAS A RESIDENT OF HIS FATHER'S HOUSEHOLD AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT AND HENCE, AN ADDITIONAL INSURED UNDER HIS FATHER'S POLICY OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

On February 25, 1978, William Charles Dennis was driving an automobile belonging to Sandra Freestone, who was a passenger in the front seat, when said automobile, which, at the time, was on the wrong side of the road, collided with a motor vehicle driven by James Holder, in which his pregnant wife and two children were riding as passengers. As a result of the collision, Sandra Freestone was killed and the Holders suffered severe and permanent injuries, for which they later obtained Judgment on August 1, 1980, against William Charles Dennis for \$355,101.44. No appeal was filed on this Judgment. The policy of insurance issued to William Charles Dennis' father by Appellant, GEICO, has policy limits of \$50,000.00 per person and \$100,000.00 per accident. The parties, in the case at bar, stipulated, prior to the Declaratory Relief trial, that at the time of the accident, February 25, 1978, William Charles Dennis was driving a non-owned private passenger automobile with the permission of the owner of said automobile and as a result, the only question remaining for determination was whether or not William Charles Dennis was a resident of his father's household at the time of the accident, February 25, 1978. In this regard, the pertinent part of the policy in question, states as follows:

"Persons Insured: The following are insureds under Part I:"

* * * * *

- "b. With respect to a non-owned automobile,
(1) the named insured,
(2) any relative, but only with respect to a private passenger automobile or trailer . . ."

The term "relative" is defined by the policy as follows:

"'Relative' means a relative of the named insured, who is a resident of the same household."

Thus, the sole issue in this lawsuit was whether the definition of "relative" applied to William Charles Dennis. In other words, was William Charles Dennis a resident of his father's household at the time of the accident, February 25, 1970?

In the recent Annotation at 93 ALR 3d, 420-465, entitled "Who Is 'Resident' Or 'Member' Of Same 'Household' Or 'Family' As Named Insured, Within Liability Insurance Provision Defining Additional Insureds", the author states as follows:

"Counsel seeking to prove that a particular individual was a 'resident' of the same 'household' as the named insured may find it helpful to make the point, recognized by numerous Courts, that such terms are ambiguous and should, therefore, be construed in accordance with general principles of insurance law, in such a manner as to favor policy coverage. The point has also been made that since the terms are to be construed so as to favor coverage, the cases which have focused upon those terms in the context of policy clauses excluding liability coverage of an individual found to be a 'resident' of the named insured's 'household' are of little value as precedents in applying clauses extending coverage to those to whom the terms apply. Counsel for an alleged insured may, therefore, find it helpful, where such cases are cited as authority by opposing counsel, to emphasize the tendency of Courts, in attempting to construe the relevant terms in such a manner as to favor coverage, to apply those terms narrowly, as opposed to the manner in which the same terms would be applied if occurring in inclusionary policy clauses." (Emphasis added).

The cases cited by Appellant, GEICO, in its Brief, are not living with exclusion cases, as is the case at bar, but are either living apart inclusion cases or exclusion cases, and hence, of "little value as precedents in apply clauses extending coverage to whom the term resident applies."

It is vitally important, therefore, at the outset to ascertain whether the cases being cited are living with inclusion cases, living apart inclusion cases, or exclusion cases. An inclusion case is one where a person is attempting to "include" himself as a resident of the named insured's household and hence, an additional insured under the policy, as in the case at bar; whereas, an exclusion case is one where the insurance company is attempting to "exclude" from coverage a person who is a relative resident of the named insured's household, so that such a person cannot sue the named insured or other relative residents of his household. Appellant, GEICO, uses the same policy definition for the term "resident of the named insured's household" for both situations, inclusion and exclusion. Naturally, insurers would prefer to have the term narrowly interpreted in inclusion cases and broadly interpreted in exclusion cases, as Appellant argues in the case at bar. Notwithstanding the insurance company's preference, since, the insurance company selected the terminology "resident of the named insured's household", which almost all Courts have said is ambiguous, the Courts have construed said term "in accordance with general principles of insurance law, in such a manner as to favor policy coverage".¹

Consequently, in the "inclusion" cases, the questioned term is broadly interpreted, while, in the "exclusion" cases, the term is given a much more restricted interpretation. Such a dichotomy is necessary, because in both situations, the Courts prefer the interpretation in favor of coverage. Indeed, one Court has stated:

"The Courts have uniformly held that where the clause is one of inclusion, it should be broadly construed for the benefit of the insured, while in exclusion cases, the same clause is given a more restricted interpretation. This is necessary because in both situations

¹The Utah Supreme Court has stated:

"We recognize the validity of the rule that if an insurance policy is ambiguous or uncertain, so that it is fairly susceptible of different interpretations, any doubt should be resolved in favor of insurance coverage." American Casualty Company v. Redding, Pennsylvania v. Eagle Star Insurance Company, 568 P.2d 731 (1977).

Sponsored by the E.J. Ourada Foundation, digitized by the Utah State Library and Library Services Library Services and Technology Act, administered by the Utah State Library. Made available under the Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-ShareAlike license.

the Courts favor an interpretation in favor of coverage. The touchstone is that the phrase 'resident of the same household' has 'an absolute or precise meaning, and, if doubt exists as to the extent or fact of coverage, the language used in most policies will be understood in its most inclusive sense.'²

In this same regard, the California Supreme Court, in Hardware Mutual Casualty Company v. Home Indemnity Company, 50 Cal. Rptr. 608, 241 C.A. 2d 303, (1966), stated:

"These quoted terms ('resident' and 'household') have no absolute meaning . . . 'Insofar as the cases involve insurance policies, they can be roughly divided into cases involving policies excluding from coverage of the policies, members of the insured's household, and those extending coverage to such persons. Both attempt to apply the rules of construction above discussed. As a result, in the extension cases, the questioned terms are broadly interpreted, while in the exclusion cases, the same terms are given a much more restricted interpretation. This is necessary, because in both situations, the Courts favor an interpretation in favor of coverage.' Finally, after a discussion of a number of cases, our opinion concluded: 'These cases illustrate that the interpretation of the terms involved is not fixed, but varies according to the circumstances of the case. They also demonstrate that most Courts will interpret the terms so as to extend the coverage if this can be done under any reasonable interpretation of the facts.'"

Notwithstanding the fact that the case at bar is a living with inclusion case and the terms "resident of the named insured's household" should receive a liberal interpretation, all of the cases cited by Appellant in its Brief in support of its contention that "intention" is relevant and material and creates an issue for the jury to resolve, are either living apart inclusion cases, where the alleged insured was not living with the named insured at the time of the accident, but living in a separate household, or exclusion cases, where the Courts have applied a very strict interpretation to the term "resident of the named insured's household". In the "exclusion" cases, the Courts have held that before the insurance company can "exclude" a person from coverage as a relative resident of

²Buddin v. Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company, 250 S.C. 332, 157 S.E. 2d 633 (1967).

the named insured's household, the insurance company must prove that such a person was not "a resident of the named insured's household" under a restricted interpretation where such a person would be a resident of the named insured's household, only if such persons "intended duration was likely to be substantial, where it is consistent with the informality of the relationship and from which it is reasonable to conclude that the parties would consider the relationship in contracting about such matters as insurance or in their conduct in reliance thereon".³

In the case at bar, an inclusion case, the Appellant, GEICO, attempted to have the Court apply a restrictive interpretation on the term "resident of the named insured's household", as set forth in Maca, Pamperin, and Granillo, supra. While Appellant did not fully succeed, Appellant was successful to the extent of making the "intentions" of William Charles Dennis and his father an issue for the jury by having the Court add the following language to Instruction No. 14:

"The intended duration must be determined after a thorough examination of all the relevant facts and circumstances surrounding the relationship. A person's intention at the time in question, may be express or implied or both." (Emphasis added).

This part of the Instruction was contrary to the Court's earlier observation that the only time a person's intention may be probative or material in an inclusion case, is where the person is living apart from the named insured in a separate residence at the time of the accident; however, where the person is living with the named insured at the time of the accident, as in the case at bar, then as the

³ See National Farmers Union Property & Cas. Co. v. Maca, 26 Wisc. 2d 399, 132 N.W. 2d 517 (1965), an exclusion case; Pamperin v. Milwaukee Mutual Insurance Company, 55 Wis. 2d 27, 197 1W 2d 783 (1972), an inclusion case, which followed Maca, which is one of the few cases in which the Court expressed the view that the terms "resident" and "household" are unambiguous and that it makes no difference whether the policy used the terms to include persons as insureds or to exclude persons from coverage; and Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company v. Granillo, 573 P2d 80 (Arizona, 1977), an exclusion case, which followed Pamperin and Maca.

over the age of majority. Section 5, infra." (Emphasis added).

The cases cited under Section 5 are classified under the heading: "Child Living With Named Insured". In every case cited where a child was living with the named insured at the time of the accident, including where the child had separate living arrangements during a prior period or whether the child was over the age of majority, the Court found that the child was a resident of the named insured's household. In the case at bar, which also involves a child living with the named insured father, where the child was over the age of majority, age 23, the Court correctly determined, as a matter of law, that the only reasonable inference to be drawn from such facts was that William Charles Dennis was a resident of his father's household at the time of the accident, February 25, 1978, and hence, an additional insured under his policy of liability insurance.

Notwithstanding the fact that the case at bar is a living with inclusion case, GEICO, cites four living apart inclusion cases and three exclusion cases in support of its position. Appellant fails to cite one living with inclusion case, because there are none that support its position, and Appellant fails to alert the Court as to the type of case involved, or as to the facts of the case. Respondents submit that it is important for the Court to know the type of case and the facts of each case before the Court can determine its value as a precedent. To assist the Court in this regard, Respondents have prepared the following chart, which divides the cases cited by the parties into living with inclusion cases, living apart inclusion cases, and exclusion cases, gives the name, state, and date of the case, a brief statement of the facts, states whether or not the case is one that involves a child or relative living with the named insured or whether the child was living apart in a separate household at the time in question and whether or not the Court considered intention as an issue and sets forth the decision of the case:

LIVING WITH AND LIVING APART INCLUSION CASES

(Liberal Interpretation Of Resident)

(Jury Question And Intent An Issue Only If Living Apart In A Separate Household At Time Of Accident)

Case	Facts	Jury Question And Intent	Decision
Dennis (Utah) 1980	Son <u>living with</u> father for <u>three months</u> before accident.	Not a jury question. Intended duration an issue, (but should not have been an issue). <u>Not living apart</u> in separate household at time of accident.	Jury, not a resident. Trial Court granted Judgment N.O.V. <u>RESIDENT</u>
1 Buddin (South Carolina) 1967	Nephew <u>living with</u> uncle for <u>two months</u> before accident.	Not a jury question. Intended duration <u>NOT</u> an issue. <u>Not living apart</u> in separate household at time of accident.	Jury, not a resident. Appellate Court held trial Court should grant Judgment <u>RESIDENT</u>
2 Hardware (California) 1966	Nephew <u>living with</u> uncle for <u>one month</u> before accident.	Not a jury question. Intended duration <u>NOT</u> an issue. <u>Not living apart</u> in separate household at time of accident.	No jury. <u>RESIDENT</u>
3 Jamestown (North Carolina) 1966	29-year-old divorced son <u>living with</u> father for <u>two weeks</u> before accident.	Not a jury question. Intended duration <u>NOT</u> an issue. <u>Not living apart</u> in separate household at time of accident.	No jury. <u>RESIDENT</u>
4 Miore (Colorado) 1974	19-year-old daughter left home to live with fiancée. Father directed insurer to take daughter off policy before accident.	No jury was requested. Intent of daughter to terminate residency at father's was an issue. <u>Living apart</u> in separate household at time of accident.	No jury. <u>NOT A RESIDENT</u>
5 Hardesty (Oklahoma) 1966 1967	Father had two separate households, one where sisters lived and raised his son, and one where he lived. Was Father resident of sisters' household? Was son resident of father's household?	Jury question. Intended duration <u>NOT</u> an issue. <u>Living apart</u> in separate household at time of accident.	Can be resident of separate households. Jury, not a resident. Reversed. <u>RESIDENT</u> . No jury, not a resident. Reversed, jury question.

LIVING WITH AND LIVING APART INCLUSION CASES CONTINUED

(Liberal Interpretation Of Resident)

(Jury Question And Intent An Issue Only If Living Apart In A Separate Household At Time Of Accident)

Case	Facts	Jury Question And Intent	Decision
Means (Oklahoma) 1967	Married minor son living in apartment at school, who was supported by father who had room at father's house and kept clothes there	Jury question. Intent as to which household he was a resident of was an issue. <u>Living apart</u> in separate household at time of accident.	Jury, <u>RESIDENT</u> of father's household. Jury question.
Walker (Utah) 1971	21-year-old daughter, living in apartment who's father augmented income and who had room at father's house. Agent told father she was resident and covered by father's policy.	No jury requested. Intent as to which household she was a resident of was an issue. <u>Living apart</u> in separate household at time of accident.	No jury, <u>RESIDENT</u> of father's household.

↖ LIVING APART INCLUSION CASES ↗

EXCLUSION CASES

(Strict Interpretation Of Term "Resident")

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